
Notice of Meeting
Western Area 
Planning Committee
Wednesday 19 September 2018 at 
6.30pm
in the Council Chamber  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury

Members Interests
Note:  If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on this 
agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Further information for members of the public
Note: The Council broadcasts some of its meetings on the internet, known as webcasting. If this 
meeting is webcasted, please note that any speakers addressing this meeting could be filmed. If 
you are speaking at a meeting and do not wish to be filmed, please notify the Chairman before 
the meeting takes place. Please note however that you will be audio-recorded. Those taking 
part in Public Speaking are reminded that speakers in each representation category are 
grouped and each group will have a maximum of 5 minutes to present its case.
Plans relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting can be viewed in the 
Council Chamber, Market Street, Newbury between 5.30pm and 6.30pm on the day of the 
meeting.
No new information may be produced to Committee on the night (this does not prevent 
applicants or objectors raising new points verbally). If objectors or applicants wish to introduce 
new additional material they must provide such material to planning officers at least 5 clear 
working days before the meeting (in line with the Local Authorities (Access to Meetings and 
Documents) (Period of Notice) (England) Order 2002).
For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148
Email: planapps@westberks.gov.uk 
Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the 
Council’s website at www.westberks.gov.uk 

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting

Public Document Pack

mailto:planapps@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/


Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 19 September 
2018 (continued)

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to Jo Reeves on (01635) 
519486     Email: joanna.reeves@westberks.gov.uk

Date of despatch of Agenda:  Tuesday, 11 September 2018



Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 19 September 
2018 (continued)

To: Councillors Jeff Beck, Dennis Benneyworth, Paul Bryant (Vice-Chairman), 
Hilary Cole, James Cole, Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards, Paul Hewer, 
Clive Hooker (Chairman), Anthony Pick, Garth Simpson and 
Virginia von Celsing

Substitutes: Councillors Jeremy Bartlett, Jeanette Clifford, Mike Johnston and 
Gordon Lundie

Agenda
Part I Page No.

1.   Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2.   Minutes 5 - 20
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this 
Committee held on 29 August 2018.

3.   Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any 
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on 
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.   Schedule of Planning Applications
(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the right 
to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest and 
participation in individual applications).

(1)    Application No. and Parish: 18/01914/HOUSE - Cherry Hinton, 
Newbury Hill, Hampstead Norreys

21 - 28

Proposal: Two storey side extension
Location: Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead Norreys
Applicant: Mr Lee Clarke
Recommendation: The Head of Development and Planning be 

authorised to GRANT planning permission.

Background Papers

(a) The West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.
(b) The West Berkshire District Local Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the 

Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire, the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire and 
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents.

(c) Any previous planning applications for the site, together with correspondence and 
report(s) on those applications.

(d) The case file for the current application comprising plans, application forms, 

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 19 September 
2018 (continued)

correspondence and case officer’s notes.
(e) The Human Rights Act.

Andy Day
Head of Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.



DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 29 AUGUST 2018

Councillors Present: Jeff Beck, Paul Bryant (Vice-Chairman), Jeanette Clifford (Substitute) (In 
place of Dennis Benneyworth), Hilary Cole, James Cole, Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards, 
Clive Hooker (Chairman), Anthony Pick and Garth Simpson

Also Present: Michael Butler (Principal Planning Officer), Derek Carnegie (Team Leader - 
Development Control) and Rachel Craggs (Principal Policy Officer (Information Management))

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Dennis Benneyworth and Councillor 
Virginia von Celsing

Councillor(s) Absent: Councillor Paul Hewer

PART I

14. Minutes
The Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2018 were approved as a true and correct 
record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the following amendment:
Page 8: The following paragraphs were to be inserted in relation to the reason for the 
refusal of planning application 18/00861/HOUSE:-
‘The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its relationship with the 
neighbouring property, No.1 Church Street, represented an overly dominant form of 
development that would cause an unacceptable level of overbearing to the private 
amenity area, specifically the rear courtyard of this property.  
The proposal therefore failed to secure a good standard of amenity for existing and future 
occupants of neighbouring properties as required in the provisions of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012 and policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006 - 2026, which sought to ensure that new development was 
appropriate in terms of location, scale and design. In addition the proposed extension 
would run contrary to Supplementary Planning Guidance 'House Extensions' Part 5 - The 
Effect on Neighbours’.

15. Declarations of Interest
Councillors Jeff Beck, Jeanette Clifford, Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards and Anthony 
Pick declared an interest in Agenda Item 4(1), but reported that, as their interest was a 
personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary interest, they 
determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.
Councillors Clive Hooker declared an interest in Agenda Item 4(2), but reported that, as 
his interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the 
matter.

16. Schedule of Planning Applications

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

(1) Application No. and Parish: 18/01001/HOUSE - 25 Buckingham 
Road, Newbury

(Councillors Jeff Beck and Anthony Pick declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 4(1) 
by virtue of the fact that they were members of Newbury Town Council and its Planning 
and Highways Committee. As their interest was personal and not prejudicial or a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined to remain to take part in the debate and 
vote on the matter.) 
(Councillors Jeanette Clifford, Billy Drummond and Adrian Edwards declared a personal 
interest in Agenda Item 4(1) by virtue of the fact that they were Foundation Governors at 
St Bartholomew's School and the school owned a property at 5 Buckingham Road. As 
their interest was personal and not prejudicial they determined to remain to take part in 
the debate and vote on the matter.) 
1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(1)) concerning Planning 

Application 18/01001/HOUSE in respect of 25 Buckingham Road, Newbury for the 
erection of a single storey rear extension; garage conversion to playroom and utility; 
re-tile existing house with slate tiles; render existing house and extension; removal 
of existing chimney stacks; alterations to existing porch and bay windows; internal 
alterations.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Simon Weaver and Matthew 
Scaplehorn, applicant/agent and Councillor Anthony Pick, Ward Member addressed 
the Committee on this application.

3. Derek Carnegie introduced the report to Members, which had been called in to the 
Committee by Councillor Pick due to concerns about the impact on the character of 
the area.  The application took account of all the relevant policy and other material 
considerations and Derek Carnegie concluded that the proposals were acceptable.  
Therefore, on balance Officers recommended the Committee should grant planning 
permission.

4. The Chairman added for clarity that Councillor Pick had called the item into the 
Committee because of his concerns about the use of slates on the roof of the 
property and the removal of the chimneys.

5. Simon Weaver in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

     He was the applicant, had lived in Newbury all his life and had purchased the 
property as a home for his family.

     The property required a considerable amount of modernisation both internally 
and externally and he wanted it to last beyond his family’s forthcoming 
requirements.  Therefore they wished to bring the house up-to-date through the 
use of modern materials.

     However, they wanted to be good neighbours and did not want to cause any 
offence with the alterations.  Consequently he had attended the meeting so that 
he could understand the various objections.

6. Councillor Hilary Cole asked why the chimneys were being removed.  Mr Weaver 
replied that as there was no purpose in retaining the fire places, there did not seem 
any reason to retain the chimneys.  In addition, it seemed appropriate to remove 
them whilst the construction work was being undertaken, as there might come a 
time in the future when they would need to be removed.

Page 6



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

7. Councillor Pick asked about the motivation for rendering the house. Mr Weaver 
responded that they had liked the look of the dwelling opposite and felt this would 
be in keeping with the neighbourhood.

8. Councillor James Cole commented that he had just reinstated two chimneys at his 
own property and consequently he was curious about this decision, as it would be 
difficult for future occupiers to put them back.  Mr Weaver noted that although his 
family did not have any use for the chimneys, future occupants might have a 
different view.

9. Councillor Garth Simpson enquired as to whether the batons on the roof had been 
reusable and Mr Scaplehorn advised him that the roof had leaked and it had not 
been possible to reuse the existing roof tiles.

10. Councillor Pick in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

     The properties in Buckingham Road dated from the Edwardian period to the 
1930s and made an important contribution to Newbury’s historical background, 
which should be conserved.

     Councillor Gina Hawkins had tried to obtain conservation status for Buckingham 
Road in 2006, but this had been unsuccessful.

     The property was of special interest in the road due to its location and the 
change in style was very drastic.

     He did not object to the property being modernised but he felt that the changes 
would make it stand out from the neighbouring properties.

     In conclusion, he felt the application should be refused and the applicant 
requested to make more sympathetic changes to the property.

11. Councillor Clive Hooker asked if Councillor Pick had raised any objections to the 
planning application for the new property on the corner of Fifth Road and 
Buckingham Road referred to in Derek Carnegie’s presentation.  Councillor Pick 
replied that he could not remember if he had.

12. Councillor Hilary Cole asked if Councillor Pick’s concerns were objective or 
subjective in nature, as she noted that the Newbury Historical Society had not 
commented on the proposals.  Councillor Pick advised that he was objecting to the 
subjective content and his observations were based on the character of the area.

13. Councillor Simpson asked how closely the proposals had followed the architecture 
of the Edwardian period, to which Councillor Pick replied that he did not know.

14. Councillor Edwards questioned whether it would have been possible for the new 
houses built on the site of the old school to have been developed in the same style 
as the rest of Buckingham Road.  Councillor Pick noted that these houses should 
have been more in keeping with the neighbourhood and reiterated that his remarks 
were based on his concerns for the impact of this development on the area

15. Councillor Drummond commented that as there had only been one objection to the 
proposal, it did not warrant the Committee voting against the Officer’s 
recommendation to approve the application. Councillor Pick responded that he had 
called in the application to enable Members to consider it and he encouraged them 
to maintain the character of the area.

16. Councillor Beck remarked that the application did not included any conditions 
relating to the contractors’ working hours or parking of their vehicles and since this 
development was near a school, it would be useful for these to be included.

Page 7



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

17. Derek Carnegie drew Members’ attention to the fact that most of the work being 
carried out was permitted development, the Highways Authority had not raised any 
concerns and the agent and contractors were working sensibly on the site. However 
it would be possible to add these two conditions if Members required him to do so.

18. Councillor James Cole enquired whether the roof was being constructed with slate 
or base slate and he was advised that it was base slate.

19. Councillor James Cole further added that Derek Carnegie had mentioned the site 
would be screened by trees, however trees did not maintain their leaves all year 
round.  Derek Carnegie replied he was not suggesting the site should be 
landscaped with screening but, as the road was tree lined, the development would 
not have a considerable impact on the neighbourhood.

20. Councillor Edwards referred Members to Point 5.2 on Page 21 of the report, which 
noted that dwellings in Buckingham Road had been extended and altered and he 
commented that this was not the case with all the properties. He further added that 
Point 5.3 stated the site was set back and vegetation provided screening, however 
this had all been removed. Derek Carnegie clarified that the report referred to the 
large tree on the footpath outside the property, which had a softening effect and the 
plans also included some landscaping.

21. In considering the above application, Councillor Bryant commented that although he 
would like to see the chimneys and roof tiles retained, Buckingham Road was not a 
conservation area.  In addition, the chimneys could be removed under Permitted 
Development Rights and consequently, it would be perverse to refuse the 
application.  In addition, a refusal was unlikely to be upheld by the Planning 
Inspector and therefore, Councillor Bryant proposed that Members should approve 
the application. This was seconded by Councillor Beck. 

22. Councillor Simpson pointed out that the roof tiles of a number of properties in 
Buckingham Road needed to be replaced and it was not possible to be prescriptive 
about the materials used, as this would be determined by householders’ budgets. 
However he was concerned about the removal of the chimneys, as this would have 
an impact on the street scene.

23. Councillor James Cole confirmed that he would not be able to vote in favour of the 
proposal and would abstain if necessary, as he did not agree that the change in the 
street scene was necessary.

24. Councillor Edwards commented that he had lived near to Buckingham Road for 
over 40 years and he was aware from the previous owner that the roof leaked.  He 
had every sympathy with Councillor Pick’s concerns as he had helped to draft the 
Town Design Statement, which stated that street scenes should be retained where 
possible.  It was not possible to change the policy that allowed for alterations to 
properties under Permitted Development Rights but he felt consideration should be 
given to the Town Design Statement.  Consequently he would also be abstaining, 
although he had respect for the applicant’s endeavours to modernise the property.

25. Councillor Clifford interjected that she knew Buckingham Road well and felt the 
alterations would make it a handsome house.  As a result, it would not be 
appropriate to refuse the application.

26. Councillor Simpson reiterated that a number of the houses in the road were not in 
good condition and it would be necessary for householders to update them. Some 
of the properties had already been rendered with pebbledash and consequently the 
diversity in the road would change over time.

Page 8



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

27. Councillor James Cole noted that the street scene had to begin somewhere and in 
this instance it started at the junction with Fifth Road.  Therefore the new property 
on the roundabout opposite was not part of the street scene.

28. Councillor Hilary Cole drew Members’ attention to the fact they had spent 45 
minutes discussing an application that could have been allowed under Permitted 
Development Rights. However it was right that the Committee considered the 
various Town and Parish Design Statements when forming their conclusions. 
Nevertheless, there had been a considerable amount of subjective comment on the 
application and it was now necessary to look at it objectively. Councillor Cole 
concluded that Members did not live in a society where the status quo could be 
maintained and they had to accept a degree of change.

29. The Chairman invited the Committee to vote on the proposal from Councillor 
Bryant, as seconded by Councillor Beck to approve the application, with the two 
additional conditions.  At the vote, five Members voted in favour of the application, 
one Member voted against it and Councillors James Cole, Adrian Edwards and 
Garth Simpson abstained.

RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions:
Conditions
1. The development hereby permitted shall be started within 3 years from the date of 

this permission and implemented in strict accordance with the approved plans.
Reason:   To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved drawings listed below:
(i) Location Plan (1:2500) received on 30.04.2018;
(ii) Block Plan received on 31.07.2018;
(iii) Drawing No.002 received on 10.08.2018.
Reason: To ensure that the development is constructed in accordance with the submitted 
details assessed against Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
(2006 - 2026).
 3. A schedule of the materials to be used on the external surfaces of the hereby 

permitted works is required to be submitted within 2 weeks of the decision and is 
required to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This condition 
shall apply irrespective of any indications as to these matters which have been 
detailed in the current application.  Samples of the materials shall be made 
available for inspection on request. Thereafter the development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved materials.

Reason: To ensure that the external materials are visually attractive and respond to local 
character.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (July 2018), Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
(2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006), 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 04/2 House Extensions (July 2004) and the Newbury 
Town Design Statement (July 2018).

Page 9



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

 4. The proposed first floor opening on the north-west elevation shall be fitted with 
obscure glass within 1 month of being installed. The obscure glazing shall be 
permanently retained in that condition thereafter.

Reason: To prevent overlooking of 27 Buckingham Road in the interests of amenity. This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (July 
2018), Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary 
Planning Document Quality Design (2006) and Supplementary Planning Guidance 04/2 
House Extensions (July 2004).
 5. No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours:

7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (July 
2018), Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).
 6. A Construction Method Statement is required to be submitted within 2 months of the 

decision and is required to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The statement shall provide for:

(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials including delivery times;
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in the construction of the development.
Thereafter the construction works shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance 
with the approved statement.
Reason: In interests of highway safety due to the close proximity of St Bartholomew’s 
School. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (July 2018) and Policies CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026).

(2) Application No. and Parish: 18/01553/OUTMAJ - Land Off Faraday 
and Kelvin Road, Newbury

(Councillor Clive Hooker declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 4(2) by virtue of the 
fact that he had been lobbied at the site meeting. As his interest was personal and not 
prejudicial or a disclosable pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the 
debate and vote on the matter.) 
1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(2)) concerning Planning 

Application 18/01553/OUTMAJ in respect of Land off Faraday Road, Newbury for a 
Section 73 application to vary the conditions of approved application 
APP/WO340/W/14/3002040, in order to permit a phased approach.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Steven Smallman, agent addressed 
the Committee on this application.

3. Michael Butler introduced the report to Members, which had been brought to the 
Committee because West Berkshire Council owned the freehold of the site and it 
was a major application. However Michael Butler stressed that the proposal was not 
to extend the lifetime of the original permission, which was due to expire on 1 

Page 10



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

February 2019, but to amend a number of planning conditions attached to the 
original permission to allow phasing of the development to be permitted.  This 
phasing would necessitate a range of alterations to the conditions, taking into 
account any new policies or material changes on the ground since the appeal 
decision, and the Committee was asked to take into account the material 
considerations in the report.  Michael Butler concluded that on balance Officers 
recommended that the planning permission should be granted with conditions 
varied, subject to the first completion of the Section 106 obligation as amended 
under 18/01454/mdopo.

4. Steven Smallman in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

     The purpose of the Section 73 application was only to amend the conditions to 
allow the development to be delivered in phases, but unfortunately it did not 
extend the time limits.

     The only reason the original planning permission did not include the phasing 
was because the practicalities of how it would be delivered were not considered 
at the time. For example, condition 14 that related to noise, stated that a 
scheme of works had to be submitted and approved for the whole site before 
any of the units could be occupied.

     Therefore, phasing of the works would allow a standard construction approach 
and would also improve the funding of the scheme, so making it more attractive 
to investors.

     If the application was approved it would be likely that the scheme would be 
delivered earlier than expected, as the building out of phases in turn would 
assist cash flow and the viability of the overall scheme.

     This was an important part of the London Road Industrial Estate and local 
planning policies stated that the Council should be supporting the delivery of 
this key site.

     If the Council had not owned the freehold of the site, it was likely that the 
permission would have been granted under a delegated decision and would not 
have come to Committee.

     If permission was granted, he requested that condition 6 relating to the 
submission of a phasing programme of works within one month of the decision, 
was extended to three months to take account of the holiday season.

5. Councillor Paul Bryant stated that the Fire Authority was trying to ensure that water 
sprinklers were installed in new buildings. He was aware that it was not possible to 
impose this, but he asked whether the developer was intending to install them. Mr 
Smallman replied that in his position as the agent, he was not able to provide 
confirmation of this, as the decision would be made by the developer.

6. Councillor Jeff Beck noted the request to amend Condition 6 to allow the phasing 
programme to be submitted in three months and he questioned how the 1 February 
2019 deadline for the permission to be implemented would be met. Mr Smallman 
advised that the reserved matters application was progressing well and would be 
submitted in advance of this date. 

7. Councillor Beck further requested that the developer was asked to seriously 
consider the installation of sprinklers.

Page 11



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

8. Councillor Hilary Cole asked for assurance that the developer was committed to the 
delivery of the Section 106 obligation in relation to the affordable housing and Mr 
Smallman replied in the affirmative.

9. Councillor Anthony Pick questioned why there was no mention of any 
archaeological implications in the conditions. Councillor Hilary Cole responded that 
this was because there were no archaeological sites of interest in the development 
area.

10. Councillor Clive Hooker asked Mr Smallman whether it would be possible for any of 
the premises to be sold, after notice had been given to the current tenant, but 
Michael Butler interjected that this was not a planning matter.

11. Councillor Pick enquired about the relationship between this application and the 
original one.  Michael Butler responded that if the Committee was minded to 
approve the Section 73 application, it would be a new permission and there would 
then be two permissions covering the site.  However, if the permission was granted 
without the Section 106 obligation, it would be possible for the site to be developed 
without affordable housing.  This was the reason officers were recommending that 
the Section 106 obligation was attached to this planning application.

12. Councillor Beck proposed that the agent’s request to extend the deadline in 
Condition 6 from one month to three months was agreed.  Michael Butler confirmed 
that it would be possible to do this and it would not affect the reserved matters.

13. Councillor Jeanette Clifford asked whether it was correct that the phasing of the 
construction work had been overlooked as suggested by Mr Smallman. She was 
assured by Michael Butler that this was probably the case and it was reasonable to 
add it in.

14. Councillor Clifford further enquired what officers meant by the phrase ‘flexibility is 
encouraged by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) guidance’ in Point 
7.1. Michael Butler explained the NPPF stated that schemes could be built out in a 
phased fashion in appropriate circumstances.

15. Councillor Bryant asked if the end result would be the same whether the site was 
built out in a phased way or not and was assured by Derek Carnegie that this would 
be the case.  Councillor Bryant went onto enquire whether the Section 73 
application was therefore purely for the convenience of the developer.  However 
Derek Carnegie clarified that it would assist the practicality of building a complex 
development.

16. In considering the above application Councillor James Cole commented that he had 
listened to the officers and as he could see no reason for any delay, he proposed 
that Members approved the application. This was seconded by Councillor Bryant 
and Councillor Beck added that it should include the amendment to Condition 6.

17. Councillor Hilary Cole noted that the application had not changed since 2009 and 
she agreed that Members should approve it, as the phasing of the development 
would ensure that construction commenced.  However, it was important that it 
included the Section 106 obligation.

18. The Chairman invited the Committee to vote on the proposal from Councillor James 
Cole, as seconded by Councillor Bryant to approve the application and at the vote 
the motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions and subject to the first completion of the 
S106 obligation 18/01454/mdopo:

Page 12



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

Conditions
Time
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before whichever is the 

later of the following dates:
i. on or before 1st February 2019.
ii. the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters [ as 

phased] or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last 
such matter approved.

Reason: To clarify the planning permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 
2015.
Reserved Matters
2. Full details of the appearance, landscaping and layout of the building(s) (the 

'reserved matters') shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority not later than 
1st February 2019 and shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before any building or other operations start on site having due regard to the 
parameters and principles for such matters as contained or referred to in the 
approved drawings originally forming part of planning permission 2/00772/OUTMAJ 
which is replaced by this permission .

Reason. To clarify the permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.
Build out
3. The development must be carried out in accordance with the reserved matters 

approvals obtained in accordance with condition 2 and other relevant approvals to 
be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the conditions set 
out in this permission. 

Reason: To ensure the correct development is built out on site in accord with the advice 
in the NPPF2.
Height
4. No building, hereby permitted, shall be higher than 26m above the agreed 

prevailing ground level of the existing site within the application site area.
Reason: To ensure the future visual impact of the scheme is acceptable having regard to 
the advice in policy ADPP2 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.
Floor levels
5. No phase of the development shall commence until details of floor levels, in relation 

to existing and proposed ground levels have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority; that phase of the development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved levels.

Reason: To ensure potential visual impact of the scheme is acceptable having regard to 
policy ADPP2 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.
Phasing.
6. Within three months of the date of this decision a phasing programme of works shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing thereafter by the Council. Each phase shall 
indicate the location and number of affordable units to be provided on site. The 
development shall then be carried out in strict accord with this phasing plan, unless 

Page 13



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. For clarity this condition relates to all of the 
scheme as permitted, not just the residential element.

Reason: To facilitate the implementation of the scheme in accord with the advice in the 
NPPF2.
Limits on floor space
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, none of the uses permitted by this 
planning permission shall exceed the following specified gross external floor-space:

i. the floor-space for B1 office uses shall not exceed 7,234m2,
ii. the floor-space for Class A1 retail uses shall not exceed 2,200m2 and the combined 

floor-space for use classes A1 and A2 shall not exceed 3,984 m2,
iii. the floor-space for A3 and A5 uses shall not exceed a combined total of 1,376m2, 

and 
iv. the floor-space for C1 hotel uses shall not exceed 3,562m2 or100 bedrooms.
For clarity and the avoidance of doubt the floor-space specified above relates to the 
gross external area of buildings (or parts of buildings) used for the specified purpose.
No more than 330 car parking spaces shall be provided.
Reason. To specify the application approved in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 
2015.
Total space permitted.
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, the total gross external floor-space 
of the buildings permitted by this decision shall not exceed 26,554m2.

Reason: To clarify the permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.
Access Link.
9. The development hereby permitted shall be accessed off Faraday Road, Kelvin 

Road, and Fleming Road - the latter as now reconfigured in accordance with 
planning permission number 14/03039/ful as shown on plan number 3595/PL21.

Reason. To ensure that the expected traffic generation and accessibility of the scheme is 
acceptable in accord with the advice in policy CS13 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026, and 
the original parameters of the planning permission 12/00772/xoutmaj.
Drainage Strategy
10. No phase of development shall commence until a drainage strategy detailing any on 

and/or off site drainage works has been submitted to and approved in writing by,[ 
for the particular phase in question,] the Local Planning Authority. No discharge of 
foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the public sewer system, 
from the phase in question, until the approved drainage works have been 
completed

Reason: The site must be drained satisfactorily, in accord with the advice in policy CS16 
in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.
Flooding
11. The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in 

accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated March 2012, 

Page 14



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

and produced by SMA, and the following mitigation measures detailed within the 
FRA:-

i. limiting the surface water run-off generated by the 1:100 year critical storm event 
plus 30% (to allow for climate change) so that it will not exceed the greenfield run-
off from the undeveloped site and not increase the risk of flooding off-site:-

ii. plus identification and provision of safe route(s) into and out of the site to an 
appropriate safe haven.

Reason: The development must not place future occupants at risk of flooding or adjacent 
land occupiers, in accord with the advice in NPPF2.
SUDS
12. No phase of the development shall commence until a surface water drainage 

scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment 
of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, for that phase 
alone. That phase of the scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details before the development is first occupied and where 
appropriate shall continue to be implemented after occupation. The scheme shall 
also include details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed after it is 
occupied, SUDS selection based on the management train outlined in the FRA, 
measures to ensure there are no soak-aways through contaminated land and where 
soak-aways are shown to be suitable they shall be constructed such that they do 
not penetrate the water table, and they shall not in any event exceed two metres in 
depth below existing ground levels.

Reason: To ensure the scheme complies with policy CS16 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.
Piling
13. Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods will not be 

permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning 
Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been 
demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The 
relevant part of the development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that there is no risk of harm or noise to adjacent land occupiers, in 
accord with the advice in the NPPF2.
Noise
14. No phase of the development shall commence until a scheme of works for 

protecting the occupiers of the development from externally generated noise has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
details submitted need only relate to the phase in question. All works forming part of 
the approved scheme shall be completed before any dwelling is first occupied. 
There shall be no open balconies overlooking the western boundary of the site onto 
the A339. Noise levels in any amenity area provided shall not exceed Leq=55dB(A), 
as recommended in WHO guidance. No residential facade shall be less than 10m 
from the edge of the A339.

Reason: To protect future occupiers from external noise nuisance, in accord with policy 
OVS6 in the WBDLP of 1991 to 2006.
Noise

Page 15



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

15. No phase of the development shall commence until the following has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority:-

i. the findings of a noise survey (undertaken in accordance with BS 4142 (or such 
other standard acceptable to the Local Planning Authority) to determine noise levels 
in the vicinity of the proposed development;

ii. written details and calculations showing the likely impact of noise from the 
development;

iii. a scheme of works or such other steps as may be necessary to minimize the effects 
of noise from the development;

iv. written approval of a scheme under (iii) above has been given by the Local Planning 
Authority.

All works forming part of the scheme shall be completed before any of the dwellings are 
first occupied, in that phase only.
Reason: To protect surrounding amenity in accord with policy OVS6 in the WBDLP of 
1991 to 2006.
Noise
16. The daytime internal noise level (0700-2300) arising from external sources shall not 

exceed Leq=40dB(A) within any bedroom of the hotel development. The internal 
night time noise level (2300-0700) arising from external sources shall not exceed 
Leq=35dB(A) within any bedroom of the hotel. Individual noise events measured 
with F-time weighting, during the night time period, shall not exceed Lmax=45dB(A). 
Details of compliance with this standard shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any part of the hotel being occupied. Where compliance to this 
standard is only achievable with windows closed, an alternative scheme of 
ventilation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect future occupiers of the hotel from external noise nuisance in accord 
with policy OVS6 in the WBDLP 1991 to 2006.
Air handling plant
17. No phase of the development on those parts of the scheme where air handling plant 

is to be incorporated and used shall commence until details of the following have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority:-

a. written details concerning any proposed air handling plant associated with the 
relevant part of the development including:-

i. the proposed number and location of such plant as well as the manufacturer's 
information and specifications;

ii. the acoustic specification of the plant including general sound levels and frequency 
analysis under conditions likely to be experienced in practice;

iii. the intended operating times;

b. calculations showing the likely impact of noise from the relevant part of the 
development;

c. a scheme of works or such other steps as may be necessary to minimise the effects 
of noise from the relevant part of the development;

Page 16



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

The relevant part of the development shall not commence until written approval of a 
scheme prepared under (c) above has been given by the Local Planning Authority. All 
works forming part of the scheme shall thereafter be completed before any of the 
development is first occupied, within the relevant phase/part of the scheme.
Reason: To ensure that there is no undue noise nuisance arising from air handling plant, 
in accord with policy OVS6 in the WBDLP 1991 to 2006.
Odour and Noise Suppression – Preparation of Food.
18. No phase of the development, where relevant, shall commence until the applicant 

has submitted to the Local Planning Authority a scheme of works or such other 
steps as may be necessary to minimise the effects of odour and noise from the 
preparation of food associated with the development. The relevant part of the 
development shall not commence until written approval has been given by the Local 
Planning Authority to any such scheme of works. The scheme once approved shall 
be implemented and maintained on the site. For clarity the details submitted need 
only relate to that phase in question.

Reason: To protect local amenity in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2018.
Tree Protection.
19. No phase of the development shall commence until a scheme for the protection of 

trees to be retained has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include a plan showing the location of the 
protective fencing, and shall specify the type of protective fencing, all in accordance 
with BS 5837:2005. Such fencing shall be erected prior to any development works 
taking place and at least two working days’ notice shall be given to the Local 
Planning Authority that it has been erected. It shall be maintained and retained for 
the full duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. No activities or storage of materials whatsoever shall take place 
within the protected areas without the prior written agreement of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To protect trees on the site in accord with policy CS17 in the WBCS of 2006 to 
2026. For clarity the details submitted need only relate to the phase in question.
Ecology
20. No part of the development, hereby permitted, shall be occupied until a scheme to 

position 10 bat and 10 swift nest boxes of a type to be agreed has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Such approved plans 
will be implemented and the features shown maintained thereafter.

Reason: To conserve local ecology in accord with policy CS17 in the WBCS of 2006 to 
2026.
Land contamination
21. No phase of the development shall commence until full details of how the spoil in 

that phase will be removed from the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The spoil shall be disposed of in 
accordance with these approved details. No phase of the development shall 
commence until two copies of a contaminated land assessment and associated 
remedial strategy, together with a timetable of works, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The contaminated land 
assessment shall include a desk study, details of investigative works and sampling, 
a risk assessment and a remediation strategy:-

Page 17



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

i. the desk study shall detail the history of the site uses and propose a site 
investigation strategy based on the relevant information discovered by the desk 
study;

ii. a suitably qualified Consultant shall be appointed to investigate the nature and 
extent of any contamination, if any, in, on or under all parts of the land to which this 
permission refers. All investigative works and sampling on site, together with the 
results of analysis must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority; if a hazard or 
hazards are identified from such investigations, a site specific risk assessment shall 
be undertaken to consider risks to wildlife, livestock, ecosystems, building materials, 
water resources, the future users of the site, surrounding land and any other 
persons. Approved remediation works shall be carried out in full on site. If during 
any works any significant underground structure or contamination is discovered 
which has not previously been identified then the additional structure or 
contamination shall be fully assessed. No further remediation works shall take place 
until a report detailing the nature and extent of the previously unidentified structures 
and contamination, together with a further remedial action plan has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all further 
remediation works shall be undertaken in accordance with the most recent 
approved remediation action plan. On completion of all remediation works in each 
phase, a closure report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The report shall make reference to all published information 
associated with the development and shall demonstrate compliance with the 
remediation strategy. It shall include the following: details of quality assurance 
certificates to show that all works have been carried out in full and according to best 
practice; consignment notes demonstrating the removal of contaminated materials; 
certification to show that new material brought to the site is uncontaminated; and 
details of any on-going post remediation monitoring and sampling, including a 
reporting procedure to the Local Planning Authority.

For clarity the details to be submitted need only relate to the specific phase in question.
Reason: To ensure protection of public health in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 
2018.
Hours of working.
22. The hours of work for all contractors (and sub-contractors) for the duration of the 

site development shall, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, be limited to 07.30hrs to 18.00hrs on Mondays to Fridays, 07.30hrs to 
13.00hrs on Saturdays, and NO work shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.

Reason: To protect local amenity in accord with policy OVS6 in the WBDLP of 1991 to 
2006.
Control of dust.
23. No phase of the development shall commence until the applicants have submitted 

to the Local Planning Authority a scheme of works or such other steps as may be 
necessary to minimise the effects of dust from the development. Development shall 
not commence until written approval has been given by the Local Planning Authority 
to any such scheme of works. The scheme once approved shall be implemented 
and maintained on the site. For clarity the details to be submitted need only relate to 
that phase in question.

Reason: To protect local amenity, in accord with the advice in the NPPF2.

Page 18



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 29 AUGUST 2018 - MINUTES

CEMP
24. No phase of the development shall commence until a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for both the 
preparatory and construction works. The Plan should detail items such as phasing 
of construction, lorry routing and potential numbers, types of piling rig, pneumatic 
breakers and earth moving machinery to be implemented and measures proposed 
to mitigate the impact of construction operations. In addition the Plan should make 
note of any temporary lighting that will be used during the preparatory and 
construction phases of the development. The Plan shall be implemented in full and 
retained until the development has been fully constructed. Any deviation from the 
Plan shall be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. For clarity the 
details to be submitted need only relate to the phase in question.

Reason: To ensure that the development is built out in a manner which will not disrupt 
local traffic flows or local amenity in accord with the advice in policy CS13 in the WBCS of 
2006 to 2026.

17. Appeal Decisions relating to Western Area Planning Committee
Members noted the outcome of appeal decisions relating to the Western Area.

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.57 pm)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….

Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 19 September 2018

Item   
No

Application No. 
and Parish

8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant

(1) 18/01914/HOUSE
Hampstead 
Norreys

31 August 2018 Two storey side extension

Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead 
Norreys

Mr Lee Clarke

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/01914/HOUSE 

Recommendation Summary: The Head of Development and Planning be 
authorised to GRANT planning permission.

Ward Member(s): Councillor Virginia von Celsing 

Reason for Committee 
determination:

More than 10 letters of objection 

Committee Site Visit: 13 September 2018

Contact Officer Details
Name: Liz Moffat
Job Title: Assistant Planning Officer
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: elizabeth.moffat@westberks.gov.uk

Page 21

Agenda Item 4.(1)

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/01914/HOUSE
mailto:elizabeth.moffat@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 19 September 2018

1. Site History - 

18/00861/HOUSE – single storey rear extension and two storey side extension REFUSED 
02.07.18
353/62 – House and garage APPROVED 1962

2. Publicity of Application

Site Notice Expired: 24.08.18

3. Consultations and Representations

Parish Council: Objection: Plans do not show the single storey rear extension being 
constructed; inaccurate plans as property incorrectly aligned with 
existing buildings; too dominant and overbearing; loss in light

Highways:
The whole of the frontage is shown as parking which is acceptable.
The highway recommendation is for conditional approval

Conservation Officer: The proposed extension to this modern detached dwelling has been 
designed to reflect the character, form and scale of the existing 
house. I therefore have no objections, as I do not feel that the proposal 
would cause any harm to the character or appearance of the CA

Environmental Health No objections

Correspondence: 16 letters of objection – concerns over loss of gap, overshadowing, 
imposing, dominant, terraced effect, loss of light, overlooking, 
overdevelopment, out of keeping in a conservation area, potential 
hazard to highway safety.  

6 letters in support of proposal.

4. Policy Considerations

4.1    The statutory development plan comprises the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 
(WBCS) and the saved policies in the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007) (WBDLP). 

4.2 Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:
 The National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)

4.3 The following policies from the West Berkshire Core Strategy are relevant to this 
application:
 Area Delivery Plan Policy 1: Spatial Strategy
 Area Delivery Plan Policy 5: North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

(AONB)
 CS13: Transport
 CS14: Design Principles
 CS19: Historic Environment and Landscape Character

Page 22



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 19 September 2018

In addition, the following locally adopted policy documents are relevant to this application:

 Supplementary Planning Document, Quality Design (June 2006)
 Supplementary Planning Guidance, House Extensions (July 2004)

                        
5. Description of Development

5.1. The site lies within the settlement boundary of Hampstead Norreys and its Conservation 
Area, as well as the AONB.  The application site is a 3 bed detached property dating from 
the 1960s which was built to the rear of a pair of period cottages in Church Street, prior to 
the erection of Flint House which lies on the corner of Church Street and Newbury Hill.  
The detached garage has since been linked to the house by a utility room.  An application 
was discussed and refused by Members in June/July 2017 which sought permission to add 
a single storey rear extension and a two storey side extension providing a garage and en-
suite bedroom above.  This application is currently under appeal.
  

5.2. Having determined that permitted development rights allow the construction of a single 
storey rear extension, the applicants have commenced construction of this element.  This 
revised application is for the two storey side extension which has been reduced in size 
including the removal of the dormer window to the rear.  

6. Consideration of the Proposal

The main issues raised by this development are:

6.1. The principle of development
6.2. The design and impact on the character of the area
6.3. The impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties
6.4. The impact on highways and parking

6.1. The principle of development

6.1.1 The application site lies within the settlement boundary of Hampstead Norreys. Within 
settlement boundaries there is a presumption in favour of new residential development 
subject to criteria set out within relevant development plan policies. In particular, policy 
HSG1 seeks to ensure that any new development is appropriate in terms of scale, 
relationship to the character of the area and does not impact general amenity including 
street parking.  Any development must be appropriate in terms of scale, relationship to the 
character of the area and does not impact upon general amenity.

6.2. The design and impact on the character of the area

6.2.1 Through the provisions of the NPPF the government outlines the importance of the design 
of the built environment.  Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy states that new development 
must demonstrate high quality and sustainable design that respects and enhances the 
character and appearance of the area. Policy CS19 seeks to ensure the conservation and 
enhancement of the built and natural environment.

6.2.2 The site is located within the AONB. The NPPF provides AONBs the highest level of 
protection.  Policy ADPP5 of the core strategy states that ‘development will conserve and 
enhance the local distinctiveness, sense of place and setting of the AONB’.  Cherry Hinton 
is set within a group of residential properties and not immediately adjacent to any open 
countryside. The proposals are not therefore considered to have a harmful impact upon the 
landscape quality of the AONB.

Page 23



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 19 September 2018

6.2.3 Cherry Hinton also lies within the Hampstead Norreys Conservation Area.  It is set back 
from the highway with the back garden measuring approximately 100 square metres which 
is smaller than the area to the front which is largely used for parking. Ground levels rise 
from east to west such that Cherry Hinton is set slightly higher than the neighbouring 
properties to the east and lower than Elwood to the west, which is set further back within its 
plot.  The properties on the opposite side of Newbury Hill are set closer to the highway.  
The impression is of a village location of relatively low density development with glimpses 
of the surrounding countryside.

6.2.4 The revised side extension has been considered by the case officer as it is currently 
presented, and taking into account the commencement of an extension to the rear. The 
previous committee report made reference to the likelihood that this element was permitted 
development.  The proposed side extension has been further reduced so that the ridge is 
dropped by 750mm and the eaves level is dropped by 1050mm to the rear and 500mm to 
the front.  The rear wall has been set in by a further 550mm.  A roof light replaces the 
original dormer window.  Given that Cherry Hinton is at a slightly higher level, concern was 
raised that the original proposal was not sufficiently subservient to the original dwelling and 
would result in a dominant built form, appearing overbearing to the occupants of No.1 
Church Street who have a small courtyard area as their private amenity area.  These 
changes have not compromised the overall design of the extension which is considered 
acceptable and will appear subservient to the original property.  The scheme is not 
considered to be overly prominent and is not considered to be harmful to the character of 
the area, including the conservation area. 

6.3 The impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties

6.3.1 Planning Policies CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy are of importance 
with regard to the potential impact upon neighbouring amenity. Policy CS 14 requires new 
development to make a positive contribution to the quality of life in West Berkshire. 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on House Extensions outlines the factors to consider 
with regard to impact on neighbouring properties.

6.3.2 It is considered that the primary impact of the development would be to the neighbours to 
the eastern side, particularly Nos. 1 and 2 Church Street.  The smaller scheme for the two 
storey addition is considered to further reduce the any perceived overbearing and the 
removal of the dormer window reduces the increase in built form.  As such, the impact on 
the private amenity area to the rear of these neighbours is further reduced.  

6.4 The impact on highways and parking  

6.4.1 The area to the front of the property is shown as parking which is acceptable subject to a 
condition to ensure this is safeguarded.  Due to the close proximity of the school and the 
junction at Water Street/Newbury Street/Church Street deliveries must be made outside of 
peak times on the highway network and morning and afternoon school pick up times  – this 
must be specified within a Construction Method Statement

7.   Community Infrastructure Levy

7.1 The increase in internal floor space of the proposed house extension is less than 100m2. 
Under the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by West Berkshire 
Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations, house extensions 
of less than 100m2 are not liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy.

The NPPF places a strong emphasis on sustainable development.  All planning 
applications must result in sustainable development with consideration being given to 
economic, social and environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal.  Being a house 

Page 24



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 19 September 2018

extension the scheme has limited economic and social considerations.  The environmental 
considerations have been assessed in terms of design, amenity and impact on the 
character of the area.  As these have been found acceptable the development is 
considered to constitute sustainable development.

8. Conclusion

8.1. Having taken account of all relevant policy considerations and the material considerations 
referred to above, it is considered that the development proposed is acceptable and 
conditional approval is justifiable for the following reasons:  It is not considered that this 
proposal would demonstrably harm the amenity of adjoining residential properties and 
accords with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and  
Policies CS14 and 19 of West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 which requires that all 
development demonstrates high quality and sustainable design that respects the character 
and appearance of the area and safeguards the amenities of adjoining occupiers.  

9. Full Recommendation

9.1 The Head of Development and Planning be authorised to GRANT permission subject to the 
following conditions:-

1.  The development of the extension shall be started within three years from the date of 
this permission and implemented strictly in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the 
development against Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-
2026 should it not be started within a reasonable time.

2.  The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the site 
location plan, block plan and drawing 206-04 received on 6 July 2018.
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is constructed in accordance with the submitted 
details assessed against Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
2006-2026.

3.  The materials to be used in this development shall be as specified on the plans or the 
application forms. 

Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policies CS14 and CS19 of West 
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

4. The development shall not be brought into use until the vehicle parking and/or 
turning space have been surfaced, marked out and provided in accordance with the 
approved plan(s).  The parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for 
parking (of private motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in order to 
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road safety and the 
flow of traffic.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2018, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).
5. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development 

Page 25



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 19 September 2018

shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The statement shall provide 
for:

(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d) Time of deliveries
(e) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(f) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the 
interests of highway safety.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2018, Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-
2006 (Saved Policies 2007). 

6. No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours:

- 8:00am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
- 8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
- nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This condition 
is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policy CS14 
of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

7. Irrespective of the provisions of the current Town and Country Planning (General 
Development) Order 2015 (or any subsequent revision), no further openings shall be 
inserted in the side elevations of the development.  

Reason: To prevent overlooking of adjoining properties and in the interests of the 
amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2018 and Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
2006-2026.

           

Page 26



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty 's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings .

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

Not Set

07 September 2018

1:7351

18/01914/HOUSE

Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead Norreys,RG18 0TR

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. and Parish: 18/01914/HOUSE - Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead Norreys
	18.01914HOUSE map


